Entrance to the nave is now by the south door, via the porch, the former north door and south doors having been walled up in 1760 and 1802. The Mawer family gave the present East window in 1951. They were a prominent family in the village, tradesmen and farmers.

In the mid Nineteenth Century Appleton Wiske had four places of Worship; St Mary’s referred to as a ‘chapel of ease’, the Wesleyan Methodist Chapel, a fine building on Front Street restored in the 1990’s, still in use today, the Primitive Methodist Chapel in Baker Street built in 1831 and the Independent Congregational Chapel in Front Street. The latter two buildings are now private houses. 

One of the problems with St. Mary's was access. Houses had been built so close to the Church on the north and east sides that the Church is best seen from the neighbouring Church Farm. In 1938 Mr Wilkinson bought a building that obscured the entrance to the Church and gave it to the Parish to be demolished. The Lych Gate was built to serve both as an entrance and the War Memorial at a cost of £50-0s-0d. It was dedicated and declared open in November 1938. 

The most recent work on the Church was completed in 2002 when the village raised over £20,000 to repair and rebuild the West Wall of the nave that had developed major faults with cracks 4˝ wide and 30˝ deep the full height of the wall in the Northwest and Southwest corners. 

Easter 2004 marked the inauguration of a major pastoral re-organisation with the formation of the East Richmond Team Ministry. The Team Ministry brought 8 Parishes and 14 Churches into a major rural benefice. 

Easter 2014 heralded another great change in the life of the Church in North Yorkshire with the amalgamation of the Dioceses of Ripon and Leeds, Bradford and Wakefield to form the new Diocese of West Yorkshire and the Dales. This date also coincided with the splitting of the Team in to two separate Benefices. The Benefice of the Wiske, that includes the Parishes of Danby Wiske and Hutton Bonville, Birkby, Great Smeaton with Appleton Wiske, and East and North Cowton. The other Benefice being East Dere Street located around Middleton Tyas at Scotch Corner.
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(Much of the information included in this short history has been taken from the Souvenir Brochure produced by Margaret Walls to commemorate the Silver Jubilee of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth the Second in 1977 and the booklet published in 1988 to mark the opening of the Recreation Field. Additional material has come from local research and from the history of the Village found on the Internet at www.appletonwiske.com. A Victorian Ordnance Survey map of 1857 may be viewed at www.old-maps.co.uk )

St Mary’s Church, or the “Chapel of Ease of the Blessed Virgin Mary at Appleton Wiske sits at the highest point of the village and lies to the West of the present village. Baines’s Directory & Gazetteer of 1823 identifies Appleton-upon-Wisk in the Wapentake and Liberty of Langbargh; SSW 7 miles of Yarm thus: 

“There is a small church. The living is a perpetual curacy, of which the Revd James Hugill, Rector of Great Smeaton is the Incumbent”. The population of the Village at the time was 492, virtually the same as today.

The first formal spellings of the name to have survived were Appletona, Appletun and Apletune. Sometime in the Middle Ages the name Wiske was added – probably derived from the Celtic word for Water or Marsh. By the 16th Century records referred to the village of Appletona super Wiske. 

There is little real evidence of the old Appleton. In the 1850’s some children playing in the main village street found a black clay amulet with a white zigzag pattern. Research pointed to it being from the pre-Christian British era. 

The Village is near a Roman Road that ran from Thirsk, north to the Tees, parallel to the more famous Dere Street. Its route can be traced from the West of Bratchet Hill near Deighton to Outgate Corner at the top of Cheesecake Hill, west of Appleton Wiske.  The word ‘Apple’ derives from the old English and High German lexicons which might point to a Saxon origin to the village.                                

Saxon burial urns were found when the Churchyard was enlarged at the end of the 19th Century. One urn containing bones, found outside the churchyard wall, was charred and burnt. It was in the possession of John Park c.1910.

No church is mentioned in the Doomsday Book of 1086 but the Saxon burial urns, found near the present Church, indicate some antiquity to the ground as a holy place. The oldest part of the Church, the fine Chancel Arch, dates from the twelfth century. Once the Conqueror had granted the Manor to Robert de Bruis it was not many years before a stone Church was built on the site in accordance with the tradition of the of the Normans. The buttresses were added of some two centuries later. It is recorded that King Edward the First heard mass in the Church in 1299 in company with his Captains when leading a campaign against the Scots.

Opinion was divided over the origins of the dedication of the Church. Three catholic sisters, who gave twenty acres of land to the parish in 1586 to provide revenue for an illegal mass to be said once a year in the Church referred to the building as “The Chapel of St. Mary Magdalen in Appleton". By the eighteenth century the dedication was assumed to be to "St. Mary the Virgin". Perhaps the fact that the manorial dues from Appleton went to St. Mary's Abbey at York until the Dissolution in 1536 confused the issue. These were the principal references to the village in the later Middle Ages. 

The Parish records of Appleton begin in 1596, by which time the manor had passed to Theodore Goodwin of Norfolk and thence to Thomas Grange of Cambridge. Church attendance and denominational allegiance was largely a matter of family and loyalty. As the main landowners from 1613 to 1732 were the catholic Thomas Bowes and his descendants it is not surprising that at least 32 inhabitants of the village followed his noted recusancy in the 17th century. Heavy fines do not seem to have diminished their steadfastness. 

Appleton’s notoriety came from the unwillingness of the population to pay taxes or fulfil the legal obligations of mending the highway and the bridge. It is possible that this resistance to central authority explained the heavy fines and forfeitures at the Quarter Sessions for failing to attend the protestant Elizabethan Church.  During the reign of Elizabeth I and James there were several prominent families who continued to support the “Catholic faith”. 

On 26th November 1585 Marmaduke Bowes of Ingram Grange, just over the bridge, was executed at York for harbouring a Priest and 21 years later Murial (sic) Bowes was presented as a recusant. The Quarter Sessions at Thirsk in 1609 saw several Appleton inhabitants with the surnames of Bowes, Clarke, Wattin, Best, Johnson and Lodge presented as recusants and fined. By the middle of the 18th century these names had given way to the family of Joseph and Elizabeth Tate, prosperous free holders and graziers. 

From 1660 to 1770 there seems to have been a variable attendance at the Church and much neglect of its fabric for in 1771 a humble petition from Appleton Wiske Church leaders and laity reported that the Church was too dangerous to worship in and "the same has now become so ruinous that it cannot any longer be supported but must be wholly taken down and rebuilt". £510 was needed for the entire work (which is believed to be a similar sum to that needed for the building of the new vestry in the 1960's). 

The Royal Arms of George III are displayed in the church and a 17th century painted board recording, unusually a lady churchwarden, Mrs George Rokeby. There is some fine Church plate, notably the 1673 chalice made by Marmaduke Best of York. 

Repairs were eventually made in 1802, a new roof, gallery and pews, the original vestry and south porch were built and a plain square east window inserted. In 1875 the Church was again re-roofed, the Chancel arch restored and new windows inserted. An incised sundial on the south wall still measures time accurately. The white paint and blue and red texts of the interior give it a light and airy effect. 

Today the Church has a bell tower at the west end, housing a single bell cast in 1621 and 20˝ in diameter. It is roofed in grey-blue slate and a stucco plaster porch with walls of grooved stone. The remains of the carved serpents, "paterae" and scallops can be seen on the 12th century chancel arch.

In the Middle Ages there was a great tradition of bowmanship and the long bow was practised every Sunday in the churchyard. The incisions in the stone fabric of the Church are more likely to have been made by bowmen sharpening arrows than by weavers sharpening shuttles in the 18th and 19th centuries, though this may have occurred. 
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